AGENDA

BOARD OF DIRECTORS FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING

DELTA DIABLO
(a California Special District)

2500 Pittsburg-Antioch Highway | Antioch, CA 94509
(Note: There will be no in-person meeting at the District.)
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 18, 2023
4:30 P.M.

In lieu of a public gathering, the Board of Directors Finance Committee Meeting will be
accessible via ZOOM to all members of the public as permitted by Government Code Section
54953(e).

The Board of Directors Finance Committee Meeting on January 18, 2023 will not be physically
open to the public and the Finance Committee Chair will be teleconferencing into the meeting.
Members of the public can observe the meeting by following the steps listed below to view and
listen to the Finance Committee Meeting.

Persons who wish to address the Finance Committee during the Public Comment period or with
respect to an item on the Agenda will be limited to two (2) minutes. The Secretary to the Board
will call on members of the public to establish a speaking order. Please indicate whether you
wish to speak during the Public Comment period or on a specific Agenda item at that time.

Presentations will be made available online at https://www.deltadiablo.org/finance-
subcommittee-meetings approximately one hour prior to the start of the Finance Committee
meeting.

How to view, listen to, and provide a Public Comment during the meeting via ZOOM:
= Using your computer, access the Zoom meeting at: https://us02web.zoom.us/|/83054550356

How to listen and provide a Public Comment during the meeting via ZOOM:
= Using your telephone, access the Zoom meeting by dialing (669) 900-6833
» Meeting ID: 83054550356

The District will provide reasonable accommaodations for persons with disabilities who plan to participate in Board
(or committee) meetings by contacting the Secretary to the Board 24 hours prior to the scheduled meeting at (925)
756-1927. Disclosable public records related to an open session item on a regular meeting agenda and distributed
by the District to a majority of members of the Board of Directors less than 72 hours prior to that meeting are
available for public inspection on the District website at www.deltadiablo.org and also at the District Administration
\S Building located at 2500 Pittsburg-Antioch Highway, Antioch, CA 94509 during normal business hours.

Delta Diablo | 2500 Pittsburg-Antioch Hwy, Antioch, CA 94509 | Main 925.756.1900 | Fax 925.756.1961
TRANSFORMING WASTEWATER TO RESOURCES
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A. PUBLIC COMMENTS

B. REVIEW ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT AND REQUIRED
AUDITOR COMMUNICATION LETTERS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021/2022

C. ADJOURNMENT
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MEMORANDUM

DATE: January 18, 2023
TO: Juan Banales, Chair, Finance Committee
FROM: Brian Thomas, Acting Business Services Director Ll

SUBJECT: REVIEW ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT AND REQUIRED
AUDITOR COMMUNICATION LETTERS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021/2022

Recommendation
Review audited Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) and required auditor
communication letters for Fiscal Year 2021/2022 (FY21/22).

Background Information

California statutes require special districts to have an annual audit conducted by independent
certified public accountants. In addition to preparing basic financial statements for FY21/22, the
District has prepared an ACFR, which provides more information (i.e., a Letter of Transmittal and a
statistical section) to improve context for the reader. Major ACFR elements and audit findings will
be presented to the Finance Committee on January 18, 2023, prior to including this item on the
agenda for the February 8, 2023 Board Meeting.

The FY21/22 ACFR was audited by Cropper Accountancy Corporation, who was selected as the
District’s auditor following a competitive request for proposals (RFP) process in April 2021.
Cropper Accountancy Corporation was awarded the audit contract for FY20/21 through FY22/23
with an option to extend the contract annually for a period not to exceed three additional years.

The District’s ACFR includes three primary sections:

1) Introductory Section. This section contains the Letter of Transmittal, which provides a brief
overview and directs the reader to relevant information within the ACFR to provide context and
improve understanding of the ACFR contents.

2) Financial Section. This section contains both comparative totals from the prior fiscal year and
supplementary information relating to the District’s five core programs: Wastewater, Recycled
Water, Household Hazardous Waste, Street Sweeping, and Bay Point Collections.

3) Statistical Section. This section provides additional historical perspective, context, and detail to
help the reader utilize the information located elsewhere in the ACFR to better understand the
District’s economic condition.

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) works to advance excellence in state and
local government financial management and promote financial reporting that provides useful
information to taxpayers, customers, public officials, investors, and others who use financial
reports. The District submitted the FY21/22 ACFR to GFOA for review under its Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting program.

Page 1 of 3



Analysis
Consistent with prior audit results, the District’s auditor has determined that the ACFR fairly

presents the District’s financial condition (this is known as an “unmodified opinion” or “clean”
opinion). Achieving an unmodified opinion provides reasonable assurance that the District’s ACFR
is free of material misstatements and represents the highest opinion that can be rendered in an audit.

FY21/22 Financial Highlights: A summary of key findings included in the ACFR regarding the
District’s financial position (as compared to FY20/21) is provided below.

§ Total assets plus deferred outflows exceeded total liabilities and deferred inflows by
$207.5 million (net position)

Net position increased by $11.3 million (5.8%), net of the prior period adjustment
Total assets plus deferred outflows increased by $19.2 million (7.5%)

Total liabilities plus deferred inflow of resources increased by $7.8 million (12.9%)
Total operating revenues = $42.6 million, an increase of $1.4 million (3.4%)

Total operating expenses = $35.6 million, a decrease of $4.0 million (12.5%)
Capital contributions = $2.8 million, a decrease of $3.9 million (-58.4%)

w W W W W W

The District remains financially sound with a combined total net position at the end of FY21/22 of
$207.5 million. Changes in net position serve as a useful indicator of the District’s financial position
over time. For FY21/22, the District’s net position increased by $11.3 million, which was the result
of three main factors:

1) Total operating revenues of $42.6 million exceeded total operating expenses by $6.9 million.
This positive result, which includes the collection of Sewer Service Charges (SSCs),
demonstrates the success of the District’s overall fiscal year operations and reprioritization of
critical capital infrastructure investment projects.

2) Net non-operating revenue of $5.7 million (Capital Facilities Capacity Charges [CFCCs] of
$2.8 million + ad valorem property taxes of $3.7 million + interest income of $0.3 million +
other non-operating revenue of $0.1 million — interest expense of $1.2 million).

3) Prior period adjustment of -$1.2 million related to unrecorded deferred inflows and outflows of
resources entries for the District’s closed pension plan, Contra Costa County Employees’
Retirement Association (CCCERA).

A thorough discussion of FY21/22 financial activities is provided in the Management Discussion
and Analysis (MD&A) section of the ACFR.

During FY21/22, the Wastewater Capital Expansion Fund fully repaid $3.3 million in interfund
loans from the Wastewater Capital Asset Fund ($2.8 million) and the Wastewater Operations &
Maintenance Fund ($0.5 million). In addition, the Wastewater Capital Asset Fund paid $3.0 million
toward the interfund loan from the Wastewater Advanced Treatment Fund, which results in a
remaining interfund loan balance of $4.0 million at the end of FY21/22.

Required Auditor Communication: Statement of Auditing Standards (SAS) 114 requires the auditor
to communicate matters regarding the audit of the District’s financial statements to the Board. The
FY21/22 SAS 114 letter received from the auditor describes the adoption of a new accounting
policy, “Statement of Governmental Accounting Standards (GASB) No. 87, Leases.” The
communication describes sensitive accounting estimates that were used in preparing the financial
statements and significant financial statement disclosures. The SAS 114 letter includes other matters
such as passed audit adjustments, management representations, any disagreements the auditor had
with management, and any difficulties encountered in performing the audit. The FY?21/22 passed
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audit adjustment noted was immaterial to the financial statements and there were no disagreements
or difficulties encountered during the audit.

In its SAS 115 Internal Control Related Matters letter, the auditor reviewed internal controls and
made recommendations for improvements, which included identification of one material weakness
in the District’s internal controls. The auditor reported finding a prior period adjustment of -$1.2
million related to deferred inflows and outflows of resources reporting for the CCCERA pension
plan. The District had been properly recording the pension liability and expense related to this
closed pension plan, however, the associated deferred inflows and outflows of resources entries
were inadvertently omitted from the financial statements since the District’s implementation of
“GASB No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions,” in FY14/15. Although the
auditor did not provide a recommendation related to this material weakness, staff will include this
year-end reporting entry in the financial statements going forward.

The SAS 115 letter describes a significant deficiency as a deficiency that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to communicate to the Board. The auditor reported the
following three significant deficiencies during the FY?21/22 audit:

§ Several District journal entries were made after the audit began. The auditor recommends that
each fund be balanced and all journal entries be made prior to audit field work. Staff will
immediately implement this recommendation.

§ The District’s Purchasing Card Procedures lack dollar limits, purchases permitted, and
approvals. The auditor recommends that the District update its Purchase Card Procedures. The
District is in the process of procuring a consultant to assist with updating procurement policies
and procedures, which includes the purchasing card procedures.

8 Observed a segregation of duties issue with the accounting software. The auditor recommends
that the Finance Manager and Information Technology Manager discuss financial system
administrative rights. Staff will assess and update current financial system permissions and
responsibilities, as necessary.

A representative from the accounting firm responsible for the independent audit will present the
FY21/22 Financial Audit Results to the Finance Committee and will address questions on the scope
of work, associated findings, and reports.

Next Steps
If recommended by the Finance Committee, the audited FY21/22 ACFR will be finalized and

presented to the Board of Directors at the February 8, 2023 meeting.

Financial Impact

The District remains financially sound. The District’s net position increased by $11.3 million in
FY?21/22 due to total operating revenues exceeding total operating expenses. The District will
consider this increase, as well as other FY21/22 final audited results, during the upcoming FY23/24
budget and SSC development processes.

Attachments

1) FY21/22 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

2) SAS 114 Letter — Auditor Communication to the Board, Cropper Accountancy Corporation
3) SAS 115 Letter — Internal Control Related Matters, Cropper Accountancy Corporation

cc: John Cropper, CPA, CGFM, CGMA, Managing Partner, Cropper Accountancy Corporation
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Delta Diablo (District) is pleased to submit the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
(ACFR) for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022 (FY21/22).

This document has been prepared by the District’s Finance Division in compliance with
the financial reporting principles and standards set forth by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). This report consists of three sections: Introductory, Financial,
and Statistical. District Management assumes the responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of the information contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive
internal control framework it has established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal
control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable,
rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any material
misstatements.

Because California statutes require special districts to complete an annual financial audit
conducted by independent, certified public accountants. This report is published to fulfill
that requirement for FY21/22. Cropper Accountancy Corporation has issued an
unmodified (“clean”) opinion on the District’s financial statements for FY21/22. The
independent auditor’s report is located at the front of the financial section of this report.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent
auditor’s report and provides an introduction, overview, and analysis of the District’s
basic financial statements. The MD&A complements this Letter of Transmittal and
should be read in conjunction with it.

As the District developed the ACFR based on recommended guidelines set forth by the
Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA), this report will be submitted to
GFOA for review and certification.

Profile of the Government

Delta Diablo is a special district in the state
1955 as Contra Costa County Sanitation L
Health and Safety Code Section 4700 for

constructing wastewater collection and trea
called Bay Point) area. In the early 1970s, tl
Board adopted a policy encouraging public



The District provides services to over 215,000 residents, as well as commercial and
industrial customers, in Bay Point, Pittsburg, and Antioch which comprises a service area
of approximately 54 square miles. The District’s service area is divided into three zones:
Zone 1 — Bay Point, Zone 2 — Pittsburg, and Zone 3 — Antioch. It is governed by a three-
member Board of Directors with one member appointed to represent each zone, including
a councilmember from the City of Pittsburg, the Mayor of the City of Antioch (or
designee), and the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors member representing Bay
Point, which is unincorporated. The Board of Directors establishes overall policies to
guide District operations, which are then implemented under the direction of the General
Manager, to provide reliable, high-quality wastewater conveyance and treatment services
at rates that are below average when compared to peer agencies in the San Francisco Bay
Area. Board meetings are open to the public and held on the second Wednesday of each
month. In addition, committee meetings, workshop sessions, special meetings, and public
hearings are occasionally scheduled and noticed.

The District has continually pursued an an
environmentally-sound resource recovery
health, the Delta, and San Francisco Bay, n
resource recovery programs and services h
Water, Household Hazardous Waste, Stre
Additional resource recovery services incluc
beneficial reuse of biosolids.

Wastewater Program: The Wastewater Pro
health and the environment by conveying an
24 hours a day, 365 days a year, the Distric
permitted by the San Francisco Bay Regior
Board) as a secondary wastewater treatment
) - - - 7 (MGD).

e District has been operating an industrial
» of 7.5 MGD, this recycled water facility is
ie-art computerized Supervisory Control and
ycled water produced by the District is
ywer plants, as well as landscape 1rrigation at
»f-way, city offices, and the golf course in
ater for industrial and irrigation applications
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hazardous pollutants from reaching waterways, landfills, and the wastewater system in
support of the District’s Pollution Prevention Program, and meeting state and federal
regulatory requirements. Use of the District’s DHHWCEF is free of charge for residents
and small businesses in East Contra Costa County. This facility accepts medications, used
oil and filters, anti-freeze, paints and stains, batteries, fluorescent and high intensity
lamps, cosmetics, pesticides, pool chemicals and household cleaners, cooking oils and
grease, and electronic waste.

Street Sweeping Program: Street sweeping is another pollution prevention service
offered by the District. One of the best ways to prevent pollutants from entering local
waterways is to remove them from streets before wind and rain carries them into storm
drains, which flow to Delta receiving waters. Regular street sweeping provides a clean
appearance throughout neighborhoods, attracts businesses to downtown areas, and
supports regional compliance with state and federal regulations related to the Clean Water

District assumed responsibility from Contra
int) collection system. Services provided for
and maintaining 43 miles of sanitary sewer
ited wastewater to the WWTP through the
 Antioch and Pittsburg maintain their own

ce and treatment services in its service area

ns in Antioch, Pittsburg, and Bay Point,

. 1n the Delta where the Sacramento and San
Joaquin Rivers meet at the eastern edge of the greater San Francisco Bay Area (Bay Area).
Housing is affordable relative to the otherwise expensive Bay Area, and there is still
significant undeveloped land in the area available for future development. The Bay Area
Rapid Transit (BART) Pittsburg-Antioch line and Highway 4 run through the area,
connecting commuters in the three communities to jobs in other parts of the Bay Area.

Because the area functions in part as “bedroom communities” to the Bay Area’s financial
district and high-tech industries, housing-related development, construction, and service-
related businesses dominate the local economy. In general, the local economy is
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essential. This public health crisis has had significant adverse economic effects.

During the COVID-19 pandemic, the unemployment rate soared to 15.5% in April 2020
in California®. In March 2021, the state unemployment rate was 8.3%?2. As of February
2022, employment rates have almost completely recovered with the regional
unemployment rate at 3.9% and the state unemployment rate at 5.9%!. There are many
unknown factors and uncertainties regarding the financial impacts associated with the
COVID-19 pandemic. Growth and development activities will continue to be closely
monitored for any unknown impacts to water use and the associated impact to Sewer
Service Charge (SSC) revenue in the future. FY21/22 had a decrease in equivalent
residential units (ERUs) compared to FY20/21 (703 and 1,407).

Median household income in Bay Point, Pittsburg, and Antioch was $69,464, $83,163,
and $80,234, respectively, compared with the Contra Costs County median household
income of $103,997 in 2020°. Populations in Pittsburg and Antioch have grown from
64,015, and 103,509 in 2011 to 74,498 and 112,848 in 2021, respectively*. This
information was not separately available for Bay Point as it 1s an unincorporated area.
Median housing prices were $717,500 in Bay Point, $639,000 in Pittsburg, and $650,000
in Antioch, as reported by Realtor.com for March 2022°.

Long-term Planning

Consistent with GFOA’s recommendations, the District has developed a Strategic Plan
as a blueprint for how the District will respond to future challenges and changing
priorities. Based on the District’s mission, vision, values, and goals, Management
presents Strategic Initiatives to support Strategic Plan implementation for the Board’s
review and acceptance each fiscal year.

In August 2021, the District completed devel ) B S
new Mission, Vision, and Behavioral Value

Objectives to guide long-term planning, org

and decision-making processes over the

1 US Bureau of Labor Statistics- www.bls.gov/regions/west/ca_oakland md.hts
2US Bureau of Labor Statistics-www.bls.gov/regions/west/California.htm

3 United States Census Bureau-www.census.gov/quick facts/fact/table/US/PST
4 California Department of Finance- www.dof.ca.gov/Forecasting/Demographi
5 Realtor.com-www.realtor.com/realestateandhomes-search
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engagement at all levels.

Behavioral Value Statements: Delta Diablo has identified Behavioral Value Statements
that directly support success in achieving our shared Mission and Vision:

= Serve as responsible stewards of valuable public resources at all levels in the
organization

= Maintain public trust and confidence through excellent customer service,
community engagement, transparency, and responsiveness

= Ensure a positive, safe, equitable, diverse, and inclusive work environment that
promotes honest, transparent, ethical, and respectful interactions

= (Communicate with integrity to share knowledge, inspire trust and camaraderie,
and maintain authentic professional relationships

= Embrace and manage change to support implementation of innovative approaches
that add value and drive sustained organizational improvement over time

= Foster a collaborative, team-based work culture that inspires engagement,
solutions-oriented dialogue, and sound decision-making processes to achieve
successful outcomes

= Reinforce accountability and ownership to ensure each employee is supported in
effectively contributing to the District’s overall success

=  Model an open, proactive, and productive approach to resolving key issues to
enhance organizational unity and alignment

= Actively seeking opportunities to build a “learning” culture by supporting
individual and peer professional development; expanding knowledge, skills, and
abilities; learning from mistakes and “near misses”; and improving work
processes and use of technology

Financial Policies and Best Practices

The District has financial policies and best practices that set forth guidelines to maintain
accountability and control over operating revenue and expenses, ensure proper
appropriation of reserves and restricted funds, and proactively address the rising costs of
pension and other post-employment benefits.
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= Economic Reserves: Economic rese
operating requirements and ensure ths
budget shortfalls or unforeseen circt
provide adequate funding to mutig
economic changes or events that sig1
increase the District’s operating cost:

= Advanced Treatment Reserve: The
approach to collecting revenues for
proactively established in 2011 to av
implementation of nutrient remova
District has successfully collaborate:
and other Bay Area Clean Water Ag______ ______ .
analyses and water quality modeling in San Fran01sco Bay rather than the future
imposition of regional nutrient removal permit limits. The outcome of this effort
1s an approximate 15-year extension in the implementation timeline. Based on this
new information and extended timeline for use of these funds, staff continued to
suspend collection of the Advanced Treatment Fund SSC component in FY20/21.

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)Trust Funding: As part of the annual budget
development process, the Board of Directors include sufficient funding to cover the
annual cost of the Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) to be deposited in to the
OPEB Trust Fund in accordance with the District’s Retiree Heath Funding Plan.

Pension Benefits Trust Funding: The District’s intent is to set aside additional funds in
a separate, qualified trust fund which may be directed into either the California Public
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) and/or Contra Costa County Employee’s
Retirement Association (CCCERA) in the future. Annual budgeted amounts are
contributed following the adoption of the budget. Upon fully funding the OPEB Trust
Fund, funds that were allocated to the ADC shall be redirected to pension benefit trust
funding, provided the OPEB Trust Fund remains fully funded.

Internal Controls: Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate
internal controls to ensure that District operations are effective and efficient, applicable
laws and regulations are followed, and financial reports are reliable. Internal controls
provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance that these objectives are met. The concept
of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should not exceed the



In FY21/22, the District continued to effectively manage its finances and strengthen its
financial position by adopting sufficient recycled water and wastewater rates to fund
operations, OPEB Trust Fund contributions, and capital infrastructure improvements. The
following results of operations indicate a continuing strong and stable fiscal position:

= Total assets plus deferred outflows exceeded total liabilities and deferred inflows
by $207.5 million (net position)

= Net position increased by $11.3 million or 5.8% during the year to $207.5 million

= Operating revenue increased $1.4 million or 3.4% to $42.6 million

= Operating expenses increased $4.0 million or 12.5% to $35.6 million

= (Capital contributions decreased $3.9 million or -58.4% to $2.8 million

Debt Administration

As of the end of FY21/22, the District had a long-term outstanding debt total of $35.0
million, compared to $33.4 million as of the end of FY20/21. Prudent financial
management policies and the District’s sound financial position resulted in an “AA”
credit rating from Standard & Poor’s in November 2015.

Budget and Rates

The adopted total operating and capital budget for FY21/22 was $43.6 million compared
to $47.1 million for FY20/21. Wastewater service rates increased by 6.5% and 5.9% for
customers 1n Pittsburg/Antioch, and Bay Point, respectively in FY21/22, compared to
3.5% for Pittsburg/Antioch customers and 3.0% for Bay Point customers for FY20/21
due to updated capital planning needs and implementation of 2022 Cost-of-Service (CoS)
Study findings.

In contrast to the previous approach of proposing a three-year operating budget and
planning cycle, the District started proposing and adopting a single-year budget in
FY18/19 and continued the process in FY21/22. The District’s intent is to transition to a
budget cycle that better aligns the rate-setting and capital improvement program
development process.
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management, e-records management, and customer payment processing (i.e.,
e-payment for permits)

Workforce Development

= Implement a streamlined, effective approach to the performance planning and
appraisal process that supports supervisor-employee engagement and aligns with
District needs, behavioral values, and strategic goals and objectives

Customer Service and Engagement

= Implement a process to ensure customers are able to provide feedback and an
evaluation of customer service experiences with the District

= Update the Strategic Communications Plan (Oct 2019) to align with the District’s
Strategic Plan

= Identify critical emergency response scenarios and conduct associated tabletop
exercises (minimum of two) with key internal stakeholders

= Enhance public awareness of key District and regional (i.e., Bay Area Pollution
Prevention Group) pollution prevention activities through targeted website,
community event, and direct contact communications

10



Headworks Improvements — Completed major rehabilitation of the headworks
and grit removal facilities to address critical infrastructure needs, provide
redundancy, and ensure effective removal of debris/grit to protect downstream
equipment.

Manhole, Gravity Interceptor, and Easement Roadway Improvements — Initiated
design of a multi-phase project to repair and replace critical manholes and gravity
interceptors, and improve access to critical wastewater conveyance system assets.

Onsite Fueling Station Replacement — Completed design activities, publicly bid
the project, and initiated construction to replace the existing onsite fueling station
to comply with regulatory requirements.

Pump Station Facilities Repair — Most of the construction work was completed to
replace isolation gates, electrical conduits, and ductwork; rehabilitate ventilation
systems; install protective coating of structures; and implement flood mitigation
improvements at the District’s remote pump stations.

Treatment Plant Switchgear Replacement — Initiated construction activities to
replace the District’s main electrical switchgear to ensure reliable power
distribution at the WWTP.

Bridgehead Pipeline Replacement — Installed a temporary bypass piping system
around the failure location and initiated construction work to replace a gravity
pipeline to ensure operational reliability of the Bridgehead conveyance system.

Sand Filter Intermittent System — Completed construction activities to replace the
existing sand filtration system with an intermittent backwash process that reduces
reject water volume by up to 95%, increases recycled water availability and
quality, decreases energy usage, and reduces chemical usage at the Recycled
Water Facility.

Awards & Acknowledgements

The District was a proud recipient of several

National Association of Clean
Performance Award

NACWA 2021 Utility of the Future
GFOA FY21/22 Distinguished Budg
GFOA Certificate of Achievement fc
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District Management

Vince De Lange. ... ...ooooiiiieeeee e se e ee e ae e e e e €TIETA] Manager
Brian Thomas ..........ccccoceiieeiiciecieneeee... Acting Business Services Director/District Engineer
Thanh Vo.....cooo e eeee-n2. Acting Engineering Services Director
Dean EcKerson.........ccoocciiieieeiicieeeeeeeeee e eeeeeeee e ... RESOUTCE Recovery Services Director
Cecelia Nichols-Fritzler ............ccoccooeiiiiiieieeeeeneee.... Office Manager/Secretary to the Board
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Vision
Delta Diablo will achieve sustained organizatioi
public service, stewardship, innovation, industrs

Behavioral Values

Serve as responsible stewards of valuable pul

Maintain public trust and confidence through

engagement, transparency, and responsivene:

Ensure a positive, safe, equitable, diverse, an

honest, transparent, ethical, and respectful int

Communicate with integrity to share knowle

authentic professional relationships

Embrace and manage change to support impl

value and drive sustained organizational impivveieut vver e

Foster a collaborative, team-based work culture that inspires engagement, solutions-oriented
dialogue, and sound decision-making processes to achieve successful outcomes

Reinforce accountability and ownership to ensure each employee is supported in effectively
contributing to the District’s overall success

Model an open, proactive, and productive approach to resolving key issues to enhance
organizational unity and alignment

Actively seek opportunities to build a “learning” culture by supporting individual and peer
professional development; expanding knowledge, skills, and abilities; learning from mistakes
and “near misses”’; and improving work processes and use of technology
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Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial
Delta Diablo, as of and for the years ended It
the financial statements, which collectively compri
in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred tc
respective financial position of the business-type &
2021, and the respective changes in financial pos
ended in accordance with accounting principles gen

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing stanaaras generally accepted 1n e unitea >diates oI
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, 1ssued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Delta Diablo and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating
to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Delta
Diablo’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement
date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. 71



The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there 1s a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on
the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Delta Diablo’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Delta Diablo’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis, the pension’s Schedule of the District’s Contributions, Schedule of the
District’s Proportionate Share of the Plan’s Net Pension Liability, Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB
Liability & Related Ratios, Schedule of the District’s Contributions, and all other schedules presented in
the required supplementary information (as shown in the table of contents) be presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

22



Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise Delta Diablo’s basic financial statements. The accompanying combining financial
statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
combining financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other
information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon. Our opinions do not cover the other information, and we do
not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 21,
2022, on our consideration of Delta Diablo’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of Delta Diablo’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
Delta Diablo’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

@/'f'f”\ Ama"hcq @rfwﬁ&\

CROPPER ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

Walnut Creek, California
December 21, 2022
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= (apital Assets and Debt
= Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budg
= Requests for Information

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEN

This MD&A i1s intended to serve as an introduc
which consist of the Financial Statements and
contains other supplementary information in add

Financial Statements

As a special-purpose government, the District reports its financial statements in accordance with
business-type activities known as enterprise funds. Enterprise funds are used to account for
services provided on a total or partial cost-recovery basis to users. Enterprise funds are reported
on an “accrual basis” of accounting similar to private sector companies. Accrual basis is the basis
of accounting under which revenues and gains are recorded when earned, and all expenses and
losses are recorded when incurred.

The financial statements consist of the Statement of Net Position; Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Position; Statement of Cash Flows; and Notes to Financial Statements.

The Statement of Net Position reports all of the District’s assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position in a format displaying assets, plus
deferred outflows of resources, less liabilities, less deferred inflows of resources, equals net
position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position serve as an indicator of whether the
District’s financial position improves or declines.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents information on the
District’s operating results and how the net position changed during the fiscal year. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when incurred regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. This statement measures the success of the District’s operations over the past year and
can be used to determine whether the District has successfully recovered all its costs through user
fees and other charges.
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Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, the ACFR also presents an
introductory section, certain required supplementary information concerning the District’s
progress in funding its obligation to provide pension and other post-employment healthcare
benefits to its employees, supplementary information by fund, and a statistical section.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Financial Highlights

In FY21/22, the District continued to effectively manage its finances and strengthen its financial
position by adopting sufficient service charges to fund operations, capital improvements, future
other post-employment benefits (OPEB), and maintain strong financial performance. The District
implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement Number 95,
Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance. The new accounting rule
did not require any changes to the District’s financial report. The following results of operations
in FY21/22 indicate a continuing strong and stable fiscal position:

= Total assets plus deferred outflows of the District exceeded the total liabilities and deferred
inflows by $207.5 million (net position)

= Net position increased by $11.3 million, net of the prior period adjustment (5.8%)

= Total assets plus deferred outflows increased $19.2 million (7.5%)

= Total liabilities plus deferred inflow of resources increased by $7.8 million (12.9%)
= Total operating revenue was $42.6 million, an increase of $1.4 million (3.4%)

= Total operating expenses were $35.6 million, an increase of $4.0 million (12.5%)

= (Capital contributions were $2.8 million, a decrease of $3.9 million (-58.4%)

Financial Position

In FY21/22, the District’s net position increased by $11.3 million (5.8%) to $207.5 million from
$196.2 million. The largest portion of the District’s net position, $130.9 million (63.1%), is
invested in capital assets necessary to provide services to its customers. Total assets plus deferred
outflows increased by $19.2 million (7.5%) during the year to $276.3 million from $257.1 million.
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was $35.6 million, which represented an increase of $1.4 million and an increase of $4.0 million,
respectively, from FY20/21.

The major components of the District’s financial results in FY21/22 were:
= QOperating revenue increased by $1.4 million (3.4%), which included a $2.6 million

increase in SSCs and Recycled Water Service Charges (RWSCs) and a decrease of $1.2
million in Other Operating Services Charges primarily related to a decrease in reimbursable
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Property tax revenue increased $0.2 million (6.9%) due to the increase in property values.

Capital contributions decreased $3.9 million (-58.4%) due to the issuance of 1,407 new
equivalent residential unit (ERU) permits in FY20/21 compared to 703 ERU permits in
FY21/22.

Other non-operating items decreased $0.3 million (-74.9%) due to a decrease in federal and
state grants totaling $0.3 million in FY 21/22.

The major components of the District’s financial results in FY20/21 were:

Operating revenue increased by $2.7 million (6.9%), $1.6 million is due to increases in
SSCs and Recycled Water Service Charges (RWSCs). SSCs increased by 3.5% for
customers in Pittsburg and Antioch while Bay Point customers has a 3% increase. RWSCs
also increased by 2.0%. In addition to increased Sewer Service Charges, Other Operating
Services Charges increased $1.1 million for reimbursable projects.

Labor costs, consisting of salaries and benefits, decreased by $2.5 million (15.2%),
primarily due a $2.2 million decrease in GASB 68 pension and GASB 75 OPEB expense.
Savings from vacant positions, offset by employee Memoranda of Understanding (MOU)
cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) increases in salaries and benefits also contributed to the
savings.

Other operating items decreased $0.7 million (19.9%) for expenses related to the east
county bioenergy project that was discontinued in FY19/20.
Property tax revenue increased $0.3 million (10.9%) due to the increase in property values.

Interest income decreased $1.0 million (80.6%), primarily due to a decreased rate-of-return
from a weighted average of 2.0% in FY19/20 to 0.4% and a decrease of $3.0 million
invested throughout FY20/21.

Capital contributions increased $5.2 million (338.6%) due to the issuance of 1,407 new
equivalent residential unit (ERU) permits in FY20/21 compared to 304 ERU permits in
FY19/20.

Other non-operating items increased $0.3 million (255.1%) due to the receipt of federal
and state grants totaling $0.3 million (compared to $0.1 million in FY19/20).
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B 167.583.623 19.782.878 11.2% 5.3%

- (1.249.152) 100.0% 0.0%
5 167.583.623 18,533,726 10.5% 53%
13 % 176417365 % 12594387 6.4% 11.2%

n) of $165.9 million, $163.7 million, and $148.6

yectively. The District invests in a broad range of

vements, wastewater treatment facilities, water

s, transmission and conveyance systems, pump

Y21/22, capital assets increased $2.2 million,

)r major projects, $0.1 million in new equipment,
and a net change of %$/.2 million mn accumulated depreciation. The District capitalized $23.9
million construction-in-progress expenses.
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Construction in progress 24,762,524 39,393,899 24,154,621 -37.1% 63.1%

Treatment & collection system 133,859,045 117,182,461 117,826,216 14.2% -0.5%
Equipment 784,650 674,730 167.101 16.3% 303.8%
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation ~ $ 165.896,574 $ 163,741.445 § 148,638,293 1.3% 10.2%

The District’s net revenue, long-term debt, property tax revenue, and contributions from customers
are used to finance capital investments.

This year’s major capital expenditures ncluded:

Project Amount
Headworks Improvements $ 1,023,748
Treatment Plant Electrical Switchgear Replacement 4,831,692
Bridgehead Pipeline Replacement 702,291
Shore Acres Interceptor Emergency Repair 749,235
Pump Station Facility Repair 808,694
Sand Filter Intermittent Backwash System 720.258

Total $§ 8835918

The District’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP) prioritizes capital needs with funding sources
for a five-year period. The plan is updated annually and presented to the District’s Board of
Directors for approval. Each year, the District continues to expand and improve its wastewater and
recycled water treatment facilities, and conveyance and distribution systems to comply with more
stringent environmental regulations and minimize wastewater overflows and/or disruptions of
service. For additional information, see accompanying Notes fo the Financial Statements Note 5 —
Capital Assets.



wastewater treatment and recycled water treatment facilities, conveyance and distribution systems,
and wastewater collection systems. The primary funding source for repayment of debt issued for
expansion purposes is the Capital Facilities Capacity Charge (CFCC).

The District received a reaffirmation of its “AA” credit rating from Standard & Poor’s in
November 2015, which represents the District’s very strong capacity to meet its financial
commitments. The primary reason for the reaffirmation was the District Board’s willingness to
continue to adjust rates incrementally, and the very prudent approach to collect and set aside funds
for the acquisition or construction of new capital assets and for the maintenance, rehabilitation,
and replacement of current capital assets. Additionally, the District’s strong financial performance,
debt service coverage, and strong liquidity built on competitive rates; manageable capital plan with
expansion costs historically financed from capacity fees; and a stable and diverse customer base
largely collected through the County’s Teeter Plan supported the AA credit rating.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT FISCAL YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES
Economic Factors
The District operates as an enterprise fund and is therefore self-supporting. The District charges

rates and fees to users to cover the costs of operations and capital improvements. Economic factors
that may affect the District include, but are not limited, to the following:
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Area Wagé Earners dir\ectl)}’impacts COLAs provided in the employee MOUs and costs
for supplies and expenses.

= Crude oil prices impact the energy market for electricity and gas prices and the chemicals
used for wastewater treatment. The District’s chemical and utilities expenses ranged from
$4.2 million to $3.1 million in the three-year period ending FY21/22.

= Changes in assessed property values, which affect the District’s property tax revenue.
When the housing market improves, the assessed property values increase, thereby
increasing the District’s property tax receipts. Conversely, any decline in the housing
market will decrease property values and correspondingly decrease property tax receipts
for the District.

These factors, to the extent known, were considered in preparing the District’s FY22/23 Budget.
Next Fiscal Year’s Budget and Rates:

In June 2022, the Board adopted the FY22/23
budgets including debt service of $31.7 million a
the District’s FY22/23 Budget, please visit the D

In April 2022, Proposition 218 (Prop. 218) notic
proposed FY22/23 rates and the associated public
an increase of 4.5% in SSCs for customers. In Jw
of Directors subsequently approved FY22/23 SSi

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

The ACFR 1is designed to provide members ¢ .

customers, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with the District’s finances and demonstrate the
District’s accountability for the funding it receives. If you have questions regarding the
information provided in this report or need additional financial information, please visit the
District’s website at www.deltadiablo.org or the District office at 2500 Pittsburg-Antioch
Highway, Antioch, California, 94509.
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Capital Assets (Note 6):
Capital assets, non depreciable
Depreciable capital assets, net of accumulated depre
Intangible right-to-use lease asset, net of accumulate

Total capital assets, net

Other Non-Current Assets:
Notes receivable, less current portion (Note 3)
Leases receivable, less current portion (Note 5)
Employee computer loans receivable, less current p¢

Total other non-current assets
Total noncurrent assets
TOTAL ASSETS
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Deposits payable

Unearned revenue

Compensated absences - current portion (Note 7)
Current portion of lease liability (Note 5)
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 8)
Accrued interest payable

Total current liabilities
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long-term debt, net of current portion (Note 8)
State revolving fund and California energy commist
Installment sales agreement

Total long-term debt, net of current portion IRV

Compensated absences - net of current portion (Not
Lease liability - noncurrent (Note 5)
Net pension liability (Note 9)
Net OPEB liability (Note 10)
Total long-term liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to leases (Note 5)
Related to pensions (Note 9)
Related to OPEB (Note 10)

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOU
NET POSITION (Note 12)

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

The accompanying notes are an integ
3
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NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS PREVIOUSLY
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT (Note 14)

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS RESTATED

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR

The accompanying notes are an integ
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0,£10,4U) 1,214, 10U

9,809,238

,809, 12,809,923

17,247,142 20,387,709
$ 17.247.142 $ 20.387.709

$ 17.247.142 $ 20.387.709



‘1'otal contributions

Investment income:

Interest, dividends and other
Less: investment expenses
Net investment income

Total additions

DISTRIBUTIONS
Payments made to retirees
Total distributions
Change in net position (3,140,567) 4,579,202

NET POSITION RESTRICTED FOR OPEB
Beginning of year 20,387,709 15,808,507

End of year $ 17247142 $ 20,387,709



The District constructs and operates subregional wastewater facilities and is responsible for
maintenance of the collection system in Bay Point.

The District is divided into three separate zones and may impose different service charges for each area
in accordance with the benefits received by those areas.

The Other Post-Employment Benefit Trust Fund is an irrevocable trust to account for contributions and
investment income restricted to pay medical benefits. Benefit and contribution provisions are
established by the Board of Directors. Eligibility, actuarial interest rates, administration and certain
other tasks are the responsibility of the Board established by action of the Board. The financial
activities of the Plan have been included in these financial statements in the OPEB Trust Fund. The
Plan does not issue separate financial statements.

B. Reporting Entity

As required by generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), these basic financial statements
present Delta Diablo and its component unit. The component unit discussed in the following paragraph
is included in the District’s reporting entity because of the significance of is operational or financial
relationships with the District.

Blended Component Unit — The Delta Diablo Integrated Financing Corporation (Corporation) was
organized November 1, 1988, under the Non-Profit Public Benefit Corporation Law of the State of
California solely for the purpose of providing financial assistance to the District by acquiring,
constructing, improving and financing various facilities, land and equipment, and by leasing or selling
certain facilities, land and equipment for the use and benefit of the public served by the District. The
Corporation has no members and the Board of Directors of the Corporation consists of the same
persons who are serving as the Board of Directors of the District. There are no separate basic financial
statements for the Corporation.

C. Basis of Accounting

Basic Financial Statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
acknowledged standard setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting standards
followed by governmental entities in the U.S.A.

The Statements of Net Position and the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
display information about Delta Diablo. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting
of internal activities. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to
external parties.
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Enterprise funds are used to account for activities similar to those in the private sector, where the
proper matching of revenues and costs is important and the full accrual basis of accounting is required.
With this measurement focus, all assets and liabilities of the enterprise are recorded on its statement of
net position, all revenues are recognized when earned and all expenses, including depreciation, are
recognized when incurred.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and
investment earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.

In addition to the District’s enterprise activities, the District maintains a fiduciary fund to account for
the assets held in a trustee capacity. Fiduciary funds are also accounted for using the economic
resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. The District reports the following
fiduciary fund:

The Other Post-Employment Benefits Trust F1
to account for assets held by the District as 1
described in Note 10.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The District annually prepares and presents

District’s Board of Directors. The budget is

five-year Capital Improvement Program wl
Budgetary controls are used and maintained t
appropriated budget.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Compensated Absences

The total amount of liability for compensated absences is reflected in the basic financial statements.
See Note 7 for additional information regarding compensated absences.
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H. Materials and Supplies

Inventories consist of operational materials an
costing method.

L Revenues — Capital Facilities Capacity Charg:

Capital Facilities Capacity Charges (CFCC) a
fime a structure is connected to the District’s
category of use is expanded or increased. Th
time the charge is imposed, or to pay for ne
benefit to the property being charged.

Revenues derived from these charges are use

the wastewater collection, conveyance, trea

principal and interest on debt instruments, or 3

reconstruction of the sewerage facilities, together with costs of administration and provisions for
necessary reserves.

J. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net assets that apply to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow
of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net assets that apply to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time.
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in the market.
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for
an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.

If the fair value of an asset or liability is measured using inputs from more than one level of the fair
value hierarchy, the measurement is considered to be based on the lowest priority level input that is
significant to the entire measurement.

L. Implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Pronouncements

Management adopted the provisions of the following Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement, which became effective during the year ended June 30, 2022.

GASB 87 — Leases— The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of
financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by
governments.

This Statement will increase the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring
reporting of certain lease liabilities that currently are not reported. It will enhance comparability of
financial statements among governments by requiring lessees and lessors to report leases under a
single model. This Statement also will enhance the decision-usefulness of the information
provided to financial statement users by requiring notes to financial statements related to the
timing, significance, and purpose of a government’s leasing arrangements. The requirements of
this Statement were originally effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019
(fiscal 2021) but were postponed 18 months by GASBS No. 95. Earlier application is encouraged.

The implementation of the pronouncement resulted in a change in principle. See note 5 for more
information.
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statements with more relevant information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a
reporting period. The resulting information also will enhance the comparability of information
about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period for both governmental
activities and business-type activities. The implementation of this Statement did not have a
material effect on the District’s financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020 - The objectives of this Statement are to enhance
comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative
literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during implementation and
application of certain GASB Statements.

This Statement addresses a variety of topics and includes specific provisions. The topics include
but are not limited to leases, infra-entity transfers between a primary government and a post-
employment benefit plan component unit, accounting for pensions and OPEB related assets,
measurement of liabilities related to asset retirement obligations, and nonrecurring fair value
measurements of assets or liabilities. The implementation of this Statement did not have a material
effect on the District’s financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates - The objective of this
Statement is to address those and other accounting and financial reporting implications that result
from the replacement of an Interbank Offer Rate (IBOR). This Statement achieves that objective
by:
e Providing exceptions for certain hedging derivative instruments to the hedge accounting
termination provisions when an IBOR is replaced as the reference rate of the hedging
derivative instrument’s variable payment

e Clarifying the hedge accounting termination provisions when a hedged item is amended to
replace the reference rate

e Clarifying that the uncertainty related to the continued availability of IBORs does not, by
itself, affect the assessment of whether the occurrence of a hedged transaction is probable

e Removing LIBOR as an appropriate benchmark interest rate for the qualitative evaluation of
the effectiveness of an interest rate swap

e Identifying a Secured Overnight Financing Rate and the Effective Federal Funds Rate as
appropriate benchmark interest rates for the qualitative evaluation of the effectiveness of an
interest rate swap.

e Clarifying the definition of reference rate, as it is used in Statement 53, as amended.
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ment Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial
Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans—an
d No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No.
ent are to (1) increase consistency and comparability
ponent units in circumstances in which a potential
yoard and the primary government performs the duties
rm; (2) mitigate costs associated with the reporting of
, defined contribution other postemployment benefit
as other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other
ment units in fiduciary fund financial statements; and
and comparability of the accounting and financial
Section 457 deferred compensation plans (Section 457
ilan and for benefits provided through those plans.

The requirements of this Statement that are related to the accounting and financial reporting for
Section 457 plans are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021 (fiscal year 2021-22).
For purposes of determining whether a primary government is financially accountable for a
potential component unit, the requirements of this Statement that provide that for all other
arrangements, the absence of a governing board be treated the same as the appointment of a voting
majority of a governing board if the primary government performs the duties that a governing
board typically would perform, are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021
(fiscal year 2021-22).

The implementation of this Statement did not have a material impact on the financial statements of
Delta Diablo.

GASB Statement No. 98, The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report - This Statement
establishes the term annual comprehensive financial report and its acronym ACFR. That new term
and acronym replace instances of comprehensive annual financial report and its acronym in
generally accepted accounting principles for state and local governments. The implementation of
this Statement did not have a material effect on the District’s financial statements.
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the principal portion ot lease payments made. L'he lease asset 1S mitially measured as the mitial amount
of the lease liability. Subsequently, the lease asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over its useful
life.

Key estimates and judgments related to leases include how the District determines (1) the discount rate
it uses to discount the expected lease payments to present value, (2) lease term, and (3) lease payments.

The District uses its estimated state revolving fund loan borrowing rate as the discount rate for leases.

The District monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its lease and
will remeasure the lease asset and liability if certain changes occur that are expected to significantly
affect the amount of the lease liability.

Lease assets are reported as intangible right-to-use asset and lease liability is reported with long-term
liabilities on the statement of net position.

Delta Diablo Lessor: The District is a lessor for three land leases. The lessees retain the option to
terminate the lease agreement by providing a thirty-day written notice to the District. The District
recognizes a lease receivable and a deferred inflows of resources.

At the commencement of a lease, the District initially measures the lease receivable at the present value
of payments expected to be received during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease receivable is
reduced by the principal portion of lease payments received. The deferred inflows of resources are
initially measured as the initial amount of the lease receivable. Subsequently, the deferred inflow of
resources is recognized as revenue over the life of the lease term.

Key estimates and judgments include how the District determines (1) the discount rate it uses to
discount the expected lease receipts to present value, (2) lease term, and (3) lease receipts.

The District uses the California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) rates as the discount rate for
leases with adjustment for applicable lease terms.

Lease receipts included in the measurement of the lease receivable is composed of fixed payments
from the lessee.

The District monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its lease and

will remeasure the lease receivable and deferred inflows of resources if certain changes occur that are
expected to significantly affect the amount of the lease receivable.
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California Law requires banks and savings and loan institutions to pledge government securities with a
market value of 110% of the District’s cash on deposit or first trust deed mortgage notes with a value
of 150% of the District’s cash on deposit as collateral for these deposits. Under California Law this
collateral is held in an investment pool by an independent financial institution in the District’s name
and places the District ahead of general creditors of the institution pledging the collateral.

The District’s investments are carried at fair value, as required by generally accepted accounting
principles. The District adjusts the carrying value of its investments to reflect their fair value at each
fiscal year end, and it includes the effects of these adjustments in income for that fiscal year. In the
District’s case, fair value equals fair market value, since all District’s investments are readily
marketable.

Classification

Cash and investments are classified in the fin
not their use is restricted.

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted investments

Committed investments

Cash and investments held with OPEB trust

Total Cash and Investments

The District’s cash and investments consist of

FULE R B LS VU

2022 2021
$ 600 $ 600
2,226,257 2,176,777
32,485,736 18,675,265
61.487.866 62,064,297
17,247,142 20.387.709

$  113.447.601 $ 103,304,648
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Local Agency Investment Fund n/a No Limit
per account
Local Government Investment Pools n/a AAA 100% No Limit
Money Market Mutual Funds n/a 15% 10%
Insured savings or money market accounts n/a 100% No Limit
Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. Normally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its
fair value changes in market interest rates. The District generally manages its interest rate risk by
holding investments to maturity which is required by the District’s Investment Policy.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s investments (including investments
held by bond trustees) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows
the distribution of the District’s investments by maturity or earliest call dates, at June 30, 2022:



California Local Agency Investment Fund $ 56,772,578 $ 56,772,578

California Asset Management Program 5.290.337 5,290,337
Money Market Mutual Funds 1.382 1.382
Total Investments $ 62.064297 $ 62,064,297

The District is a participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by
California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of
California. The District reports its investment in LAIF at the fair value amount provided by LAIF,
which is the same as the value of the pool share. The balance is available for withdrawal on demand,
and is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost
basis. Included in LAIF’s investment portfolio are collateralized mortgage obligations, mortgage-
backed securities, other asset-backed securities, loans to certain state funds, and floating rate securities
issued by federal agencies, government-sponsored enterprises, United States Treasury Notes and Bills,
and corporations. At June 30, 2022 and 2021, these investments matured in an average of 311 and 291
days, respectively.

The District is a participant in the Californ:
investment pool offered by the California As
powers authority and public agency created
provisions of the California Joint Exercise of -
et seq., or the “Act”) for the purpose of exerci
certain proceeds of debt issues and surplus
permitted by subdivisions (a) to (n), inclusive
At June 30, 2022 and 2021, these investments

Money market mutual funds are available for-
investments had an average of 10 and 28 days,

The District has authorized staff to deposit ca

pooled accounts with cash from various other _

purposes. The County’s investment policies are e;ovemed by State statutes. In addmon ‘the County has
an investment committee, which prescribes written investment policies regarding the types of
investments that may be made. The policies limit amounts that may be invested in any one financial
institution or amounts, which may be invested in long-term instruments. Interest earned from such time
deposits and investments is allocated quarterly to the District based on its average daily cash balances.
The fair value of the account at June 30, 2022 and 2021 was provided by the County Treasurer.
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Aaa Total

1.544 $ 1,544
1,544 1.544
56.182.193

5,304,130

$61,487.867

ane 30, 2021 for each investment type as provided by

Aaa Total
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through policy adoption, or constrained for a specitic purpose by committees or oificials with authority
delegated by the Board.

Restricted for Debt Service — State Revolving Fund Loan — The District has restricted investments
in reserves as required by the agreement between the District and the California State Water Resources
Control Board State Revolving Fund Loan (SRF) in the amount of $1,149,283 and $1,149,283 at June
30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Restricted for Escrow — Headworks Improvement Project — The District held $0 and $498.551 at
June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, in escrow related to retentions on the construction project.

Board Committed Investments
The District has the following committed investments as of June 30:

Committed for Economic Uncertainty — The District has committed investments to ensure the
continued ability to provide wastewater services during budget shortfalls or unforeseen circumstances
and provide adequate funding to mitigate overall rate volatility resulting from economic changes or
events that significantly decrease the District’s revenues or increase the District’s operating costs.
Funding amounted to $9,686,871 and $9,633,028 at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Committed for Advanced Treatment (AT) — The District has committed investments for advanced
treatment projects to meet more stringent anticipated discharge regulations (e.g., nutrient removal).
Funding amounted to $19,685,341 and $16,642.409 at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Committed for Self-Insurance — The District has committed investments to cover self-insured losses.
Funding amounted to $500,000 at June 30, 2022 and 2021.

Fair Value Hierarchy

The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to
measure fair value of the assets. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in an active market for identical
assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs: and Level 3 inputs are significant
unobservable inputs.
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39,4/0 17,313

52.841 55.437
3,018,167 3,361,070
(347.198) (342,903)

$ 2,670,969 $ 3,018,167

he District and the City of Antioch (City) entered into a
003, for the purpose of development and operation of a
ler the provisions of the agreement, the Project is to be
Zity. The District is authorized to design, construct, own,

In fiscal year 2010/2011 (FY 2011), the District recognized a Note Receivable in the amount of
$5,753,348 from the City of Antioch for their net share of the costs for this project. This note has an
interest rate of .077% with principal and interest due annually commencing December 31, 2011 and
maturing on December 31, 2030. On June 10, 2012, the District and the City of Antioch amended the
Joint Powers Agreement to cap this Notes Receivable to a maximum of $5,000,000. As of June 30,
2022 and 2021, the outstanding balance was $2,259,527 and $2.509,621, respectively.

In FY 2012, additional project cost share incurred in excess of $5 million in the amount of $1,102,272
will be financed by the District at an interest rate of 4.25% with principal and interest due monthly
over a 20-year term commencing July 1, 2012 and maturing on June 1, 2032. This monthly installment
is billed to the City of Antioch as a Recycled Water Surcharge and annually amounts to $81,908. The
outstanding balance as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $666,323 and $718.,699, respectively.

City of Pittsburg — The District and the City of Pittsburg (City) entered into a Joint Powers
Agreement on November 24, 1999, for the purpose of development and operation of a “Recycled
Water Program” (the Project). The goal of this project is to construct a conveyance system and
transport recycled water to the City’s golf course and certain parks to reduce the City’s reliance on
treated drinking water for irrigation. Under the provisions of the agreement, the Project is to be jointly
funded by the District and the City. The City is responsible for the design and construction of the
Project. The District will operate and maintain after construction is completed. The original project was
completed, however, it was discovered that a portion of the previously existing line needs to be
rehabilitated in order to ensure reliability. The estimated cost for this rehabilitation project was
$1.,500,000. Of this amount, the City has agreed to pay a maximum of $375,000 payable over a 10-year
term with an interest of 4.25 percent (prime plus 1 percent).



Waste (HHW) and a Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity Generator (CESQG) waste collection
facility. In an agreement dated July 1, 2002, Contra Costa County, Ironhouse Sanitary District and the
Cities of Antioch, Brentwood and Pittsburg (Subscribers) agreed to reimburse the District for capital
costs in planning and constructing the household hazardous waste facility.

On April 9, 2008, this agreement was amended and includes capital cost sharing minus any grants
received for the planning and construction of the new facility expansion. The Delta Household
Hazardous Waste Collection Facility (DHHWCF) expansion was completed in September 2009. Per
the provisions of this amendment, the outstanding principal balance from the original facility
construction will be combined with the new facility expansion costs, to be re-paid over a 25-year
period with interest at 6% per annum. Total capital costs were allocated to the Subscribers based on the
number of housing units in each Subscriber’s jurisdiction. The City of Brentwood and Ironhouse
Sanitary District have paid their respective shares in full. The total outstanding balance of the loan as
of June 30, 2022 and 2021 were $52.841 and $55,437, respectively.

NOTE 4 -EMPLOYEE COMPUTER LOANS RECEIVABLE I

The District provides a zero interest loan to its employees for the purchase of personal computers.
These loans are payable in a maximum of 78 equal payroll deductions (3 years). The maximum amount
each employee may borrow is $2,500. The loan receivable balances were as follows as of June 30:

2022 2021
Employee computer loans $ 8,099 $§ 3,744
Less: Current portion (3,617) (2,490)
Long-term portion $ 4482 $ 1254

NOTE 5 - LEASES

The District has several leasing arrangements, summarized below.

A.

Lessee Activities

The District has accrued liabilities for one equipment lease. The discount rate used in the calculation of
the lease liability was 1.9%. The remaining liability for the lease is $70,875 as of June 30, 2022. Right to
use assets, net of amortization, for the lease is $69,730 as of June 30, 2022. The District is required to
make monthly principal and interest payments of $1,259. Principal payments of $1,259 were recognized
in the year ended June 30, 2022. Final payment on these leases is expected in fiscal year 2027.



000 12,11V

389 15.110
109 12,593
$ 3.417 $ 74,292

2e land leases. The remaining receivable for these leases
), 2022. Deferred inflows related to these leases were
:nue recognized on these leases was $5,730 for the year
6,452 were recognized as revenue during the fiscal year.

ne Corporation entered into an operating lease with the

lease real property located at 2600 Pittsburg-Antioch

L _ _ :. The base rent for the leased land started at $32,500 per

year and is set to escalate every five years based on changes in the Consumer Price Index. The current

rate is $36,540 per year. The area leased is 260 feet by 50 feet, on land that is not targeted for District

improvements. The agreement terminates May 31, 2050. Minimum future rentals total $985,275 at

June 30, 2022. The lessee, DEC, retains an option to terminate the lease agreement by providing a
thirty-day written notice to the District.

American Tower entered into an operating lease with the District, effective August 1, 2014, to lease a
cell phone tower on the District’s property. The base rent for the leased tower started at $2,400 per
month and is set to increase 3% each year during the term. The current rate is $2,952 per month. The
agreement terminates on August 1, 2024, with three automatic successive 5-year extension periods,
unless American Tower terminates it at the end of the then current term. Minimum future rentals total
$772,910.

Bridgehead Tower entered into an operating lease with the District, effective March 1, 2013, to lease a
cell phone tower on the District’s property. The base rent for the leased tower started at $1,000 per
month and is set to increase 3% each year during the term. The current rate is $1,305 per month. The
agreement terminates on March 1, 2023, with a 5-year extension period, unless Bridgehead Tower
terminates it at the end of the then current term. Minimum future rentals total $95,129.



Property, plant and equipment are recorded at the time of purchase and are capitalized at cost. The
District capitalizes as part of the asset cost, any significant interest incurred during the construction
phase of the asset. Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the
date contributed. Donated capital assets, donated works of art and similar items, and capital assts
received in a service concession arrangement are reported at acquisition value rather than fair value.
The District defines capital assets as property, plant and equipment with an initial individual cost of
$5.,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method for assets other than land and construction in
progress. Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Conveyance and collection systems 50 years
Treatment plant 40 years
Office furniture 15 years
Shop, lab and other equipment 10 years
Computer equipment 3 years
Vehicles 3 years

The District’s right-of-use asset for oxygen tanks has a cost of $72,134, and accumulated amortization
of $2,404.



11,092,328 (23,858.030) (1.865.673) 24.762.524

11,092,328 (23,858.030) (1.865.673) 31.252.879

- 23,180.526 - 280.077.490

105,440 677,504 (27.539) 6,532,938
105,440 23,858,030 (27.539) 286,610.428
6.503.942 - - 146,218.445
673,024 - (27.539) 5,748.288
7.176,966 - (27.539) 151,966.733
(7.071.526) 23,858,030 - 134,643.695
$ 4.020.802 $ - % (1.865.673) $165.896,574

construction in progress are summarized below for the

Expensed (CIP) Balance at

Additions Transfers or Retired June 30, 2021
$ - $ - $ - $ 6490355
23478944  (6.785.466) (1.454.200) 30,393,899
23478944  (6.785.466) (1.454.200) 45884254
- 6.138.439 - 256,896,964

- 686.494 - 5,777,533

- 6.824.933 - 262,674,497
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838.950 776.960

(993,010) (797.877)

$ 881425 $ 1035485
862,499 765,798
18,926 269,687

lic Leave Bank, which accumulates up to 40 hours from
re. Employees may also donate vacation hours. This time
all their sick leave due to catastrophic illness and need
ic Leave at June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $12.046 and
the balance of Accrued Payroll and Benefits on the



4.90% due 06/24/2031

2011 WW State Revolving Fund Loan
2.60% due 04/03/2033

2015 WW Califormia Energy Commission Loan
1.00 % due 6/22/2029

2015 Bay Point State Revolving Fund Loan
1.90% due 11/01/2044

2016 Pittsburg State Revolving Fund Loan
1.90% due 11/01/2046

2016 WW State Revolving Fund Loan
1.90% due 12/30/2046

2019 WW State Revolving Fund Loan
1.90% due 12/01/2050

2020 WW State Revolving Fund Loan
1.90% due 12/1/2030

Total Long-Term Debt

Less:
Amounts due within one year

Total Long-Term Debt, net

purpose of financing a solar energy project. The agreement amount totals $2,344,210 with a stated
interest of 4.9% per annum, and is payable from revenues of the District. Principal and interest
payments are due semi-annually on December 24 and June 24, commencing December 24, 2011 and
maturing on June 24, 2031. The outstanding loan from directing borrowings contain a provision that in
an event of default, they declare all principal components of the unpaid installment payments, together

2344210

5.041.873

700.000

1.188.820

12,000,000

2,054,000

13,500,000

3,198,734

with all accrued and unpaid interest components immediately due.

1348274 (78.021) 1270253 85415
3,561,285 (233.764) 3327.521 235,842
462,927 (49.409) 413,518 49,905
1,020,787 (32.278) 988,509 32,892
10,769.253 (308.959) 10460294 314828
1,848,847 (55.647) 1,793,200 56,703
1,206,169 7616529 8,822,698
3,198,734 3,198,734 82.905
23708546  $10.815263  $(1.074223) 33449586  $1.178877
(1,074.221) (1,178.877)
$22,634325 $32.270,709



2015 California Energy Commission Loan

The District entered into a loan agreemen
Development Commission on October 10, 2
Project. The project consists of energy savin
Plant. The loan amount totals $700,000 at 1.0
and interest payments are due semi-annually 1
2029.

2015 Bay Point State Revolving Fund Loan

On October 8, 2014, the District entered int
Resources Control Board for the purpose of fi
and Rehabilitation Project (Phase 1). The lo:
stated interest of 1.9% per annum. Princip
November 1 and May 1, commencing on November 1, 2015 and maturing on November 1, 2044.

2016 Pittsburg State Revolving Fund Loan

On October 24, 2014, the District entered into a loan agreement with the State of California Water
Resources Control Board for the purpose of financing the Pittsburg Forcemain Improvement Project.
The loan principal totals $12,000,000 with a 30-year term and stated interest of 1.9% per annum.
Principal and interest payments are due semi-annually, on November 1 and May 1, commencing
November 1, 2017 and maturing on November 1, 2046, from the Waste Water Fund (75%) and Bay
Point Collection Fund (25%).

2016 Wastewater State Revolving Fund Loan

On August 8, 2014, the District entered into a loan agreement with the State of California Water
Resources Control Board for the purpose of financing Bay Point Wastewater Infrastructure Repair and
Rehabilitation Project (Phase 3). The loan principal totals $2,054,000 with a 30-year term and stated
interest of 1.9% per annum. Principal and interest payments are due semi- annually, on November 1
and May 1, commencing on November 1, 2016 and maturing on November 1, 2045.
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of June 30, 2022, the District has drawn down a total of $11,569,317.

2020 Wastewater State Revolving Fund Loan

On August 8, 2014, the District entered into a loan agreement with the State of California Water
Resources Control Board for the purpose of financing 2017 Sewer Pipeline Repair (Phase 4). The loan
principal totals $3,198,734 with a 30-year term and stated interest of 1.9% per annum. Principal
payments are due annually on December 1, and interest payments are due semi- annually, on December
1 and June 1. Payments commenced on December 1, 2021 and mature on December 1, 2050.

Debt Service Requirements

Annual debt service requirements are shown below for all long-term debt as of June 30, 2022:

Direct Borrowings

Tar Tha Vaar



General Information about the Pension Plans

Plan Description — All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in
the District’s Miscellaneous Employee Pension Rate Plan. The District’s Miscellaneous Rate Plan are
part of the public agency cost-sharing multiple-employer, which is administered by the California
Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). The employer participates in one cost-sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan regardless of the number of rate plans the employer
sponsors. Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State statute and Board resolution.
CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plan regarding
benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS
website.

Benefits Provided — CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries.
Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members
with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All
members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one
of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W
Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public
Employees’ Retirement Law.

The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2022, are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous
Tier1 Tier IT Tier IIT
Prior to 6/30/12 6/30/12 to 12/31/12 On or after
and employees hired 1/1/13; new
on or after 1/1/13 member
who are not a "new
Hire date member"
Benefit formula 2.7% @ 55 2.0% @ 55 2.0% @ 62
Ranafit vactinn cnhadsla 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service
monthly for life monthly for life  monthly for life
55 55 62
2.70% 2.00% 2.00%
8.00% 7.00% 7.25%
14.35% 11.12% 7.70%

the Plan as a percentage of payroll for the normal cost
1 dollar amount for confributions toward the unfunded
for 2022 and 2021 were $1.393.591 and $1.178.443,
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contribution rate of employees.
For the year ended June 30, the contributions to the Plan were as follows:

2022 2021
Miscellaneous Miscellaneous

Tier I IT & III Tier I IT & IIT
Contributions - employer $2.348.213 $2,273.068

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related
fo Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Plan and
additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis
as they are reported by the CalPERS Financial Office. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with
the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

As of June 30, the District reported a net pension liability for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability of the Plan as follows:

2022 2021
Proportionate Proportionate
Share of Net Share of Net

Pension Liability  Pension Liability

CCCERA Plan (12/31) $  (565.545) $  16.641
Miscellaneous Tier I, IT & IIT 10.302.215 18.111.057
Total Net Pension Liability $9.736.670 $18.127.698
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Plan as of June 30, 2020 and 2021 was as follc

Proportion - June 30, 2020
Proportion - June 30, 2021
Change - Increase (Decrease)

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the District’
Miscellaneous Tiers I, II, and III. The At Ju
resources and deferred inflows of resources rel

Contributions made after the measurement date o
ience 1,155,282 -

473,094 -

)ortionate (527,362)
anings on

(8.993.289)

$ 3.976.589 $ (9.520.651)

itributions subsequent to the measurement date, will be
ibility in the year ended June 30, 2023.

‘resources related to pensions will be recognized as
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Differences between actual and expected experience 933,317

Changes in assumptions
Changes in employer's proportion

- (129.,175)
626,766 -

Net differences in actual contributions and

proportionate contributions

- (524,059)

Net differences between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments
Total

538.018 -
$ 4371169 $ (653.234)

Deferred outflows of $2,273,068 related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date, was
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the current fiscal year.

Actuarial Assumptions — The total pension liability in the June 30, 2020 valuation was determined

using the following actuarial assumptions:

Post Retirement Benefit Increases

to 2015) that can be found on the CalPERS website.
Contract COLA up to 2.50% until Purchasing Power
Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies
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projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical
returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the
short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a building- block approach. Using the
expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was
calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the rounded single
equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one
calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. Such cash flows were developed assuming that
both members and employers will make their required contributions on time and as scheduled in all
future years. The expected rate of return was then set equal to the single equal rate calculated above
and adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses.

The table below reflects expected real rate of return by asset class.
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(1% decrease) (Currentrate) (1% increase)
Net Pension Liability  $20.418,175 $ 10,302,215 $ 1,939,495

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position — Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.

Contra Costa County Employees Retirement Association Closed Plan

The District discontinued participation in the Contra Costa County Employees Retirement Association
(CCCERA) effective June 20, 2004. The termination agreement provides for an evaluation of any
additional liability owed to CCCERA every three years. CCCERA retained certain assets contributed
by the District and they remain responsible for retiree benefits for retirees and deferred vested members
who were not transferred to the CalPERS system. The designation of 3.75% of payroll annually for
Employee Benefit Costs will be a source of funds to address this or other liabilities due. CCCERA’s
actuary has conducted and determined the District’s termination liability using the triennial experience
analysis as of December 31, 2015 Based on this analysis and in accordance with the termination
agreement with CCCERA, the District’s unfunded obligation of $2,017.307 is to be amortized over 15
years, resulting in annual payments of $221,489 starting December 31, 2016. The next triennial
actuarial valuation is expected on November 2022. As of June 30, 2022, in accordance with GASB 68,
the District recorded a net pension asset of $565,545 under the CCCERA plan, as well as deferred
outflows of $435.441 and deferred inflows of $1,569,573.

NOTE 10-OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS I

A.

Plan Description and Funding Policy

The District provides post-retirement health care benefits to eligible retirees in accordance with
Memorandums of Understanding (MOU) with employee groups. In accordance with the MOU, the
District contracts with CalPERS to provide post-retirement health benefits through the CalPERS
PEMHCA program, which provides for vesting at age 50 with five (5) years of service. The District
implemented the California State Vesting Program for Retiree Health Care as regulated by
Government Code 22893 by resolution (8/2008).
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include sufficient flllld]'lllg to cover the Actuarially Determined Contributions (ADC) to be deposited
into the OPEB Trust Fund in accordance with the District Retiree Health Funding Plan.

On July 14, 2010, the Board adopted the District’s Retiree Health Funding Plan which outlines that
employees will begin contributing 1% of their salaries to the OPEB Trust in July 2010; that these
contributions will increase to 2% of salaries in July 2011 and to 3% of salaries in July 2012. It also
covers all of the other key elements of the Principles of Agreement such as 1) employee contributions
are made on a pre-tax basis and are included in employee compensation for CalPERS retirement
purposes; 2) the District at least match the annual employee contributions; 3) the District make a good
faith effort to fully fund the remaining ADC each year:; and 4) that in recognition of the employees’
initiative in assisting in funding the OPEB obligation, the terms of the bargaining units” MOU with the
District be extended by three years.

Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
2022 and 2021
Dlan Tima Single Employer
Yes
No
No

bership in the plan consisted of the following at the

2022 2021
64 73
rently
69 64
yet
5 5
138 142
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Participation at Retirement

The underlying mortality assumptions were b
all other actuarial assumptions used in the Jun
30, 2020 actuarial experience study for the per

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined
to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return
by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and
best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the
following tables.
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Aes,a * M- ation Real Rate of Return

1% 4.82%
% 1.47%
% 3.76%
% 0.06%
0%
2.75%
6.25%

easure the total OPEB liability was 6.25% for 2022 and

to determine the discount rate assumed that District

the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on

y net position was projected to be available to make all
prujecteud uUres payweuts i curem acuve and inactive employees and beneficiaries. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability.
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$18.945,205 $ 20,387,709 $ (1,442,504)
681.842 - 681.842
1.190,784 - 1,190,784
562.616 - 562.616
- 611.177 (611,177)
- 273,177 (273.177)
- (2,812.836) 2,812,836
- (43.756) 43,756
(1,149.005) (1,149.005) -
1,286,237 (3,121,243) 4,407.480
$ 20231442 $ 17.266,466 $ 2.964.976
s as of June 30, 2021:
Increase (Decrease)
Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability/(Asset)
() ®) ©=-@-®
$20,011.910 $15,808,508 $ 4,203,402
794,754 - 794,754
1.264,614 - 1.264.614
(956,197) - (956,197)
(1,024.220) - (1,024,220)
- 1,139,773 (1,139.773)
- 278.341 (278.341)
- 4,347,665 (4,347.665)
- (40,922) 40,922
(1,145.656) (1,145.656) -
(1,066,705) 4,579,201 (5,645,906)
$ 18,945,205 $ 20,387,709 $ (1.442,504)
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Plan’'s Net OPEB Liabilit

Discount Rate -1% Current Dis
(5.00%) (6.0(
$ 5,503,964 $ 2.96:

Plan’s Net OPEB Liabilit

Discount Rate -1% Current Dis
(5.25%) (6.2¢
$ 889,392 $ (1,44

The following presents the Net OPEB Liabilit
Liability would be if it were calculated using
lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the cu

—

"y (Asset) at June 30, 2022

Trend 1% Increase
4,976 $ 6,310,729

y (Asset) at June 30, 2021

Trend 1% Increase

2,504) $ 1,421,571

mws of Resources Related to OPEB

- recognized actuarial OPEB expense of $330,029. As of
yutflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB from

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
ience $ - $ (865,027)
596,777 (693,826)
B 1,459,639 -

$ 2,056,416 $ (1,558,853)




2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
Thereafte

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the Distric
June 30, 2021 the District reported deferred ¢
the following sources:

Differences between expected and actual exp N
Changes of assumptions 184,385 (859,023)
Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on OPEB plan investments ) (2.393,709)
Total $ 184385 $ (4,375,450)

NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT I

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disaster. The District joined together
with other entities to form the California Sanitation Risk Management Authority (CSRMA), a public
entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for 60
member entities. The purpose of CSRMA is to spread the adverse effects of losses among the member
entities and to purchase excess insurance as a group, thereby reducing its cost. The District pays an
annual premium to CSRMA for its general liability, property damage, workers compensation insurance
and automobile coverage.

CSRMA is governed by a Board composed of one representative from each member agency. The
Board controls the operations of CSRMA including selection of management and approval of

operating budgets, independent of any influence by member entities.

CSRMA is not a component unit of the District and the District’s share of assets, liabilities, and equity
has not been calculated.
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Statutory Limit None

212,867,392 25,000
2,000,000 None
2,000,000 None
2,000,000 2,500

7 bonds to protect against the risk of employee theft or
ployee fidelity bonds have not exceeded coverage in any
1 statements of CSRMA may be obtained at 560 Mission

anding claims at fiscal year-end, as management believes
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Net Position is the excess of all the District’s
deferred inflows, regardless of fund. Net Posit
only to Net Position, which is determined only

Net investment in Capital Assets describes tt
current net book value of the District’s capital
finance these assets.

Restricted describes the portion of Net Pos
conditions of agreements with outside partie

which the District cannot unilaterally alter.

Unrestricted describes the portion of Net Posit

NOTE 13 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES I

A. Purchase Commitments
The District has a number of purchase commitments for ongoing operating and capital projects that

involves multi-year contracts. Purchase commitments related to these multi-year contracts are
approximately $11,153.,292 and $15,109,480 as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
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Schedule of Pension Amounts by Employer that the District was 1e001d111g a liability for the net
pension obligation, but had omitted $1,221,021 related to prior years’ deferred inflows and
outflows of resources.

An OPEB liability account with a balance of $28,131 that was misclassified as a non-operating
income item in 2021.

The aforementioned errors in the 2021 financial statements resulted in a prior period adjustment
to net position as shown below:

Beginning net position, as previously stated $196,200,243
CCCERA deferred inflows/outflows not previously (1,221,021)
recorded

OPEB liability shown as income in 202]
Total prior period adjustment

Beginning net position as restated
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367,246 1.417.678 6.613.863

1.195,070 - 8.202.379
1.195,070 - 8.202.379
50,050 - -
50,050 - -
1,612,366 1417678 14.816242
67.542 204244 79322
2,637 - 4914
52,840 ; )

_ ; 172.836

_ : 13.458

123,019 204244 270,530

- - 5.635.108

- - 5.635.108

123,019 204244 5.905.638
1.195,070 - 2.394.435
_ ; 290,038

294277 1213434 6.226.131

1.489.347 $ 1,213,434 $ 8.910.604




Total transfers in (out)
NET INCOME (LOSS) AFTER TRANSFERS

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS PREVIOUSLY STATED
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT
NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR, AS RESTATED

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR

82

(22.339)

8,974,221 3,131,429
147,079,491 2,937,691
(1,249.152) -
145,830,339 2,937,691
154,804,560 6,069,120




(315.829) 368,072 3 (29,904) ;

20,861 (29,803) 11,006 486,673 12,594,387
35,037,552 1,519,150 1,202,428 8,423,931 196,200,243
- - - - (1,249.152)

35,037,552 - 1,519,150 1,202,428 8,423,931 194,951,091

$ 35058413  $ 1489347 § 1213434 § 8,910,604 $ 207,545,478
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We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-
type activities of Delta Diablo, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Delta Diablo’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 21, 2022.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Delta Diablo’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Delta Diablo’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Delta Diablo’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness 1s a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency 1s a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that 1s less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Delta Diablo’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.
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These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the District’s most significant
revenue sources.

Major Revenue Base and Rates..............oooooiiiiii e 94
Service Charges and Service Charges as a Percentage of Total Operating Revenue.............. 95
Principal CUSTOMICTS .......ooooiieeeeeeeee e e e e e s e e e eennean 95

Debt Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the affordability of the District’s
current level of outstanding debt and its ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Outstanding Debt By Type and Debt Per Capita ..............ocoooooiooiiiieeeee e 96

Pledged Revenue COVETAZE ...........oove e e e e an 97

88



Demographic and Economic Statistics - District Service Area and Contra Costa County ....99

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the District’s financial report relates to the services the District provides and
activities/programs it performs.

ADBOUL the DISIIICE ..o s 100
Number of District Employees By Department/Function..................c.coooooeiioiiiiieeeee 101

Operating and Capital Indicators By Program ... 102
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ITEM B

Attachment 2

. (925) 932-3860 tel
an accountancy corporation (925) 476-9930 efax

2700 Ygnacio Valley Road, Ste 270
C R O P P E R Walnut Creek, CA 94598

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS WWI/I/.CfOpperaCCOUmancy.COIH

January 4, 2023
Board of Directors

Delta Diablo
Antioch, California

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities of Delta Diablo for the year
ended June 30, 2022. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards as well
as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such
information in our letter to you dated August 2, 2022. Professional standards also require that we
communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Matters
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by Delta Diablo are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. As
described in Notes 1.L. and 1.M. to the financial statements, the Delta Diablo changed accounting
policies related to leases by adopting Statement of Governmental Accounting Standards (GASB
Statement) No. 87, Leases, in 2022. Accordingly, the cumulative effect of the accounting change as of

the beginning of the year is reported in the Statement of Revenue, Expense, and Changes in Net Position.

We noted no transactions entered into by Delta Diablo during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the District’s financial
statements were:

e Management’s estimate of the depreciation expense is based on the District
capitalization policy, judgment about which items represent routine maintenance
and repairs, as well as the estimated useful lives of the underlying assets. We
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimate of
depreciation expense in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

e Management’s estimate of the pension related deferred inflows, deferred outflows,
net pension liability, and pension expense is based on an actuarial valuation and
the requirements of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Pensions — an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. We evaluated the key
factors and assumptions used to develop the pension related estimates in
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a
whole.



e Management’s estimate of the Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) related
deferred inflows, deferred outflows, net pension liability, and pension expense is
based on an actuarial valuation and the requirements of GASB Statement No. 75,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the
pension related estimates in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the
financial statements taken as a whole.

e Management’s estimate of fair value of investments: The District’s cash and
investments held at June 30, 2022 as measured by fair value are disclosed in Note
2 to the financial statements. Fair value is essentially market pricing in effect at
June 30, 2022.

e Management’s estimate of the lease related items, including deferred outflows,
right-to-use asset, lease liability, lease interest expense (as lessee), lease asset, and
lease interest income (as lessor) are based on the requirements of GASB Statement
No. 87, Leases. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the
estimate of depreciation expense in determining that it is reasonable in relation to
the financial statements taken as a whole.

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were:

e The disclosure of the prior period adjustment in Note 14 to the financial
statements which describes the omission of deferred inflows and outflows related
to the Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association (CCCERA) from
the financial statements through June 30, 2021.

e Long-term debt disclosures as described in Note 7 to the financial statements.

e The disclosure regarding the Pension Plan and OPEB in Notes 8 and 9 to the
financial statements, which describes the provisions as well as the actuarially
determined deferred inflows, deferred outflows, net liabilities (assets), and
expense.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing
our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial (see Attachment A), and communicate them to the
appropriate level of management.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting,
or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the
financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose
during the course of our audit.



Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated December 21, 2022.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves
application of an accounting principle to Delta Diablo’s financial statements or a determination of the
type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require
the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To
our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as Delta Diablo’s auditors. However,
these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were
not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and
Related Ratios, Schedule of Employer Contributions, Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability, and Schedule of the Proportionate Share of Employer Contributions, which are
required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our
procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and
management of Delta Diablo and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

@rpw‘la«

CROPPER AC OUNTANC CORPORATION
Walnut Creek, California



Attachment A
Proposed Audit Journal Entry Report
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Client: DELTA DIABLO
Engagement: Delta Diablo 2022 Audit
Current Period: 06/30/2022
Workpaper: Passed AJEs
Workpaper
Account Description Misstatement Reference Debit Credit Net Income Effect
Passed 01 Known Classification K02

110-1111006-5800
110-110103-3900

Total

GRAND TOTAL

DEPRECIATION
FUND BALANCE - UNRESERVED

0.00 110,836.68
110,936.68 0.00

110,936.68 110,936.68 110,936.68

110,936.68 110,936.68 110,936.68
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] (925) 932-3860 tel
an accountancy corporation (925) 476-9930 efax

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS WWWCfOppefaCCOUntancy.COm

Board of Directors and Management

Delta Diablo
Antioch, California

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the business-type activities of Delta Diablo as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, we considered Delta Diablo’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Delta
Diablo’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Delta Diablo’s
internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and therefore material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses and other deficiencies that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the following deficiencies in
internal control to be material weaknesses:

e During the audit, a prior period adjustment (PPA) of $1,221,021 related to the Contra Costa County
Employees’ Retirement Association (CCCERA) pension was found. Delta Diablo is considered a
“terminated employer” with the CCCERA pension plan which means that the pension expense and Net
Pension Liability have been directly allocated to Delta Diablo by CCCERA starting with the June 30,
2017 reporting date. This allocation includes not just the pension liability and expense, but a prorated
portion of the deferred outflows and deferred inflows relating thereto. Those deferred inflows and
outflows were inadvertently omitted from the financial statements issued through June 30, 2021.

We do not have a recommendation going forward. This PPA was found on the CCCERA annual valuation
allocation and was most likely missed on the set up of the CCCERA pension liability several years ago.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than
a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the
following deficiencies in internal control to be significant deficiencies:

e Several client accommodating entries were made after the auditor was provided with the trial balance.

We recommend that each fund be balanced and all reclassing and closing entries be made prior to
beginning of audit fieldwork.

e During the audit we examined several CAL-card transactions under the Purchase Card Procedure.

We recommend the purchasing policy be updated to include dollar limits, purchases permitted, and
approvals. We would also advise the District to consider vending machines for on-site supplies and
inventory to possibly reduce costs.

We recommend the limits on what can be purchased with the CAL-card be clarified. The “Purchasing
Procedures Manual” is not clear as to what can be purchased. Examples include: limits on supplies,
inventory, and computer software. The limitations should be clearly delineated.



e During the audit we observed a segregation of duties issue with the accounting software which can be

mitigated.
We recommend the finance manager and IT manager discuss MUNIS administrative rights and access

propriety.
This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Directors, and
others within Delta Diablo, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified

parties.

o Kecusbnes Gt

CROPPER ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATIO

Walnut Creek, California
December 21, 2022
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